Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st March, 2003

1. GENERAL 1.
The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in Bermuda under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda with its ordinary shares listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Group is principally engaged in the media-related
business, including broadcasting and publishing
businesses. The Group was also previously involved in
the civil construction business, the operations of which
were discontinued during the year ended 31st March,
2002.

2. ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD 2.

ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first
time, a number of new and revised Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP(s)") issued by the
Hong Kong Society of Accountants. The adoption of these
SSAPs has resulted in a change in the format of
presentation of the cash flow statement and inclusion of
the statement of changes in equity, but has had no
material effect on the results for the current or prior
accounting periods. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment has been required.

Foreign Currencies

The revisions to SSAP 11 “Foreign Currency Translation”
have eliminated the choice of translating the income
statements of overseas operations at the closing rate for
the year, the policy previously followed by the Group.
They are now required to be translated at an average
rate. This change in accounting policy has not had any
material effect on the results for the current or prior
accounting periods.
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ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (Continued)

Cash Flow Statements

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 15
(Revised) “Cash Flow Statements”. Under SSAP 15
(Revised), cash flows are classified under three headings
— operating, investing and financing, rather than the
previous five headings. Interests received and interests
paid, which were previously presented under a separate
heading, are classified as operating and financing cash
flows respectively. Cash flows arising from taxes on
income are classified as operating activities, unless they
can be separately identified with investing or financing
activities. Cash flows of overseas operations have been
re-translated at the rates prevailing at the dates of the
cash flows rather than the rate of exchange ruling on the
balance sheet date.

Employee Benefits

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 34
“Employee Benefits”, which introduces measurement rules
for employee benefits, including retirement benefit plans.
Because the Group only participates in defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes, the adoption
of SSAP 34 has not had any material impact on the
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified for the revaluation
of certain investments in securities and in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are set
out as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st March each year.

Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances
within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group's interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary at the
date of acquisition.

Goodwill is capitalised and amortised on a straight line
basis over its useful economic life.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Revenue recognition

Broadcasting advertising fee income net of agency
deductions is recognised when the relevant
advertisements are broadcasted.

Revenue from sub-licensing of programme rights is
recognised upon delivery of the pre-recorded audio visual
products and other materials for the programme rights to
the customers.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of newspaper and magazine are recognised when
newspaper and magazine are delivered and title has
passed.

Advertising revenue is recognised on the relevant
publication date of the Group's newspapers and

3.
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magazines.
Revenue from internet website content sales is recognised MR WesF] TEE - BRAEMA
on a straight line basis over the contract term if the DHEWMANERERE K F HAM®

revenue for the service is fixed.

Services income are recognised when the services are
rendered.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
machinery under operating leases, is recognised on a
straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the interest rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are depreciated on a straight
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and 25
years.

Depreciation of other assets is provided to write off the
cost over their estimated useful lives, using the reducing
balance method, at 20% per annum.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in the income statement.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, such that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of any impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Finance leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets concerned to the Group. Assets
held under finance leases are capitalised at their fair
values at the date of acquisition. The corresponding
liabilities to the lessor, net of interest charges, are included
in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Finance
costs, which represent the difference between the total
leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets
acquired, are charged to the income statement over the
term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.

All other leases are classified as operating leases and the
annual rentals are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Purchased programme rights

Cost, which comprises acquired programme costs in
respect of programming licence agreements for rights of
presentation, is capitalised and charged to the income
statement over the shorter of the licence period or over
the estimated number of future showings and the
estimated useful lives. Programme rights with a licence
period of twelve months or less are classified as current
assets.

Self-produced programmes

Self-produced programmes are stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss. Cost comprises the production
cost of the programmes which consists of direct
expenditure and an appropriate portion of production
overheads. The production costs of the self-produced
programmes are charged to the income statement upon
the first showing of the programmes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method.

Investments in securities
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade date
basis and are initially measured at cost.

All securities other than held-to-maturity debt securities
are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value.

Where securities are held for trading purposes, unrealised
gains and losses are included in net profit or loss for the
year. For other securities, unrealised gains and losses are
dealt with in equity, until the security is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative

gain or loss is included in net profit or loss for the year.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the
year as adjusted for items which are non-assessable or
disallowed. Timing differences arise from the recognition
for tax purposes of certain items of income and expense
in a different accounting period from that in which they
are recognised in the financial statements. The tax effect
of timing differences, computed using the liability method,
is recognised as deferred taxation in the financial
statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability
or an asset will crystallise in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars
are translated at the rates ruling on the dates of the
transactions or at the contracted settlement rate, if
applicable. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in such currencies are re-translated at the rates ruling on
the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on
translation are included in net profit or loss for the year.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
overseas operations are translated to Hong Kong dollars
at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the
Group's translation reserve. Such translation differences
are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in
which the operation is disposed of.
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4.

TURNOVER

Financial Statements

i

Continuing operations

Broadcasting business

— broadcasting advertising fee income

— sub-licensing of programme rights

Publishing business
— sales of multi-me

consultancy fee income
advertisement production income

production facilities income

dia products

— sales of newspaper and magazine

— newspaper and magazine

advertising income

internet website content sales

Discontinued operations

Construction business

— civil engineering

— rental income from leasing machinery
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Included in advertising fee income is HK$11,468,000
(2002: HK$12,590,000) in respect of barter transactions

entered into during th

e year.

Bxw
2003
—EE=F
HK$000
BETT

44,816
57,184
5,180
1,164
451

108,795

54,619
11,990

8,780
305

75,694

184,489

2002
—gg=%
HK$°000
BT

137,710
38,738
2,798

318

179,564

11,005

11,005

56,123
214

56,337
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i

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Financial Statements

The Group is currently engaged in media-related business,

including broadcasting and publishing businesses.

In prior years, the Group was also involved in civil

construction business. That operation was discontinued

from 8th February, 2002.

Segment information about these businesses is presented

below:

Business segments

Results
Segment revenue AERA
Segment results PREE

Loss on disposal of HERBARZ

subsidiaries B#

Gain on disposal of HEBRIEEH L
discontinued operations M

Finance costs BERE

Loss before taxation RRiER

Tatation it

Loss before minarity HEYR CEY 3
interests NER

Minarity interests SYRFES

Net loss for the year AEEERRE

5.
Broadcasting Publishing
1] il
2003 2002 2003 2002
Z¥¥cF C¥%CE C¥EcE C¥ECf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBTT  EETn BETR EETR
108,795 179,564 75,694 11,005
(40250)  (71146)  (106813) 93

SERH
AEEBRMEIENERBHEBEES
BREERERDRES -

RBEFE  AEBTFEEEEAE
HEIREK - FREBER_TT -
F_ANBRIE -

BRALMERZDRENZINWT:

BREBEIS
Construction Consolidated
g% ]
2003 2002 2003 2002
“%%zf -%%-f C-¥%cE  CBECE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI BRI BB
- 56,337 184,489 246,906
- (597)  (347063)  (71650)
(21,657) -
= 4,760
(1,661) (292)
(370381)  (69817)
(3222) =
(373603) (69817
8,739 201
(364864)  (69,616)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)
Balance sheet

Broadcasting
i1
2003 2002
—¥%=f C¥%cE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI RETR
Segment assets PEEE 200,817 317618
Unallocated KR
corporate assets AAEE
Segment liabilities AERE 53,017 31,046
Unallocated AR
corporate liabilties ARafE
m)EDIA

5.
Publishing
it
2003 2002
98z C990f
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBTn  ERIR
312,258 12372
74,282 3,154

SWMAEH (B)
BEENS (&)
BEEREX

Construction

2003
It 4
HKS'000
BT

B

2002
it £ ut 3
HKS'000
BRTR

Consolidated
&8

2003 2002
—¥%=f C¥%cf
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI RETR
513,075 329,990
96,341 168,790
609,416 498,780
127299 34200
66,544 58,705
193,843 92,905
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)

Other information

Additions of property, 7% - BER
plant and equipment  REEM

Depreciation and nx - BER
amortisation of RETE
property, plant and i 5
equipment

Mlowances forbad and ~ REF R
doubtful debts

White-down of inventories 77 & # #

Amartisation of goodwill  FE# i

Impairment loss recognised € 2 & 3
in respect of goodwil ~ FEREIE

Impairment loss recognised 1% + #& R
in respect of property,  KEZERR
plant and equipment  (ERIE

Broadcasting
i

2003 2002
kL o R £
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT  ERTR
6,311 9,530
16,894 17,642
120,000 40,000
10,856 8,613
= 1,860
= 3,041

5.
Publishing
it
2003 2002
98z C990f
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBTn  ERIR
1,801 a4
4,850 LYy
1363 =
4770 573
7,510 =

SWMAEH (B)
BEENS (&)

Construction
B4
2003 2002
Z¥%cF CB%zf
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT  BEIn

Consolidated
&8

2003 2002
—¥%=f C¥%cf
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI RETR
8,112 10,192
21,744 18,479
120,000 40,753
1,363 -
15,626 9,186
71,370 1,860
- 3,041
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.
Geographical segments
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
revenue by geographical market, irrespective of the origin
of the goods/services:

SWEH (B)

R ES S
TEEY,/ R RIRM - RETS
R B o 2 ANEBE KA DRG0
T

Revenue Loss from operations
[N wEEE

2003 2002 2003 2002
—®T=F -—BT-F -BT=F -FTI=-F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT EETR EETRT BETR

By geographical market: R 5 R &5
Hong Kong B 22,941 80,767 (70,697) 2,575
Mainland China (“PRC") B RRE ([HRE]) 125,946 163,341 (220,770) 9,688
Taiwan =0 35,602 2,798 4,739 (5,950)
Macau R - - (7,675) (11,683)
184,489 246,906 (294,403) (5,370)

Unallocated RO ER

corporate expenses ANAIFAX (52,660) (66,280)
Loss from operations K EE (347,063) (71,650)

Revenue from the Group's discontinued operation was
principally derived from Hong Kong.

AR IS EERA T EBRE
B -
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.
Geographical segments (Continued)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment, by the geographical area in which the assets

SWEH (B)
RMBERS (&H)
KEAKEERUERBZBAZTER
BEE BREEMEHMEDZNEE
ERTMEIE BB NREEMNZ

are located: DM
Carrying amount Additions to property,
of segment assets plant and equipment
SEESERTIE WiE - ISR AR N
2003 2002 2003 2002
—BT=F BT -HF —TTE=E —TEC-E
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT
Hong Kong b 348,806 446,674 344 1,098
PRC s 192,963 42,350 6,659 9,071
Macau R 3,534 8,875 46 23
Taiwan = 64,113 881 1,063 -
609,416 498,780 8,112 10,192



Notes to the

Bt % 8 &5 M

BE-BRT=F=-A=+-HLEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

Loss from operations has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation and amortisation
of property, plant and equipment:
Owned assets
Assets held under finance leases

Directors’ remuneration:
Fees
Rental expenses under an operating
lease paid for a director
Other emoluments
Compensation for loss of office

Other staff costs

Total staff costs

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Realised and unrealised loss on
investments in securities

Write-down of inventories

Operating lease rentals in respect of:
rented premises
plant and equipment

Less: amount capitalised in construction
contract costs

Interest income from bank deposits

Financial

Statements
6. BEBSR
THE GROUP
xEE
2003 2002
—ET=F —EE-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETR
"LEFBBE R GFA) ¢
1% SN B & 1,630 698
M MR RFREZ
e NEH -
BEEEE 18,908 18,341
BEREHNFEZEE 2,836 138
21,744 18,479
EEHS -
e 381 381
BRBLEERORA—RES
TRHZzHEEER = 250
H b 3R B 7,475 5,308
BB - 2,565
7,856 8,504
H b I8 B B A 48,275 50,528
& B B A K 56,131 59,032
LEME - HE R
BB B 1R 1,582 517
BHEEZEE2HAR
REIE 18 1,279 350
FE s 1,363 =
THEBEzEEROZHES -
vz 12,201 10,646
HEE N & 2,730 5,615
14,931 16,261
W BREIERBEETR
BRI 2 B8R - (112)
14,931 16,149
RITERZ A B WA (515) (2,847)
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7. GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 7.
On 8th February, 2002, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of its construction
business. The disposal was effected in order to better
utilise the Group's resources. The control of the
construction business was passed to the acquirer on 8th
February, 2002.

The results of the construction business for the period
from 1st April, 2001 to 8th February, 2002, which have
been included in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31st March, 2002, were as follows:

Turnover -

Cost of sales S5 & P A
Other operating income H 48 & A
Allowances for bad and doubtful debts REBREE
Administrative expenses TR

Loss from operations KEERE
Finance costs Bh & KA

Loss before taxation R 75 Al & 1B
Taxation BiE

Net loss for the year REFEEFEH

HEERLEEHZKS
R-FZ_F_ANB  A&EEFTT
BRHEEGZE  AHESHREXR -
ETHEFTHEEEARANAAEH
ZER - BEXBZEFHEER-F
E-F_ANREBTREBA

HE_ZTZ-_F=ZA=+—ALEFE
ZEHEMBREMHFBEEEBN T
E—FNA—BE_ZT_F_AN
HEAR ZEEMT:

1.4.2001

to

8.2.2002
R-BE—%
mA—B=E
—ET-E
—ANH
HK$000
BETR

56,337
(50,314)

6,023

677
(753)
(6,544)

(597)
(253)

(850)

(850)
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1. GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 7.

(Continued)

The carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of the
construction business at the date of disposal are set out

in note 27.

A gain of HK$4,760,000 arose on the disposal of the
construction business, being the proceeds from disposal
less the carrying amount of the subsidiaries’ net assets
(see note 27). No tax charge or credit arose from the

transaction.

8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:

Bank loans, overdrafts and borrowings
wholly repayable within five years
Other borrowings wholly repayable

within five years
Finance leases

i

8. MBEHX

ATNIEBZHME

BARAFAZHEE ZRIT
BN BXREMEER
BARAOFANEZHEER
ZEHMEE

BMEED

Wat - HERHER

2003

—ET=F
HK$°000
BT

1,008

505
148

1,661

/8 £

1= K

HEERIEEBZRE (&

BEEKCEERAENRHERRZ
BREESH N E27 -

B SR IS EE A 5 4,760,0007T 2
b= D= R/NG]
FEEZEARE FGRME27) - X5
WEEEBBEZ HSORE -

2002
—EF-F
HK$°000
BETR

2,308

551
68

2,927
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EFEHM&
Details of directors’ remuneration are set out below: BEEMEzFBERT
THE GROUP
XERE
2003 2002
—BT=HF —EEC-HE
HK$°000 HK$000
EETRT BETR
Fees: B
Executive HITESE = =
Non-executive FHMITES = -
Independent non-executive BUIFEHITES 381 381
381 381
Other emoluments: HiM< :
Executive HITES
Salaries, allowances and benefits e RRREYH S
in kind 7433 5,544
Retirement benefits scheme R ARAR T 5 B4 5K
contributions 42 14
Compensation for loss of office BER S E - 2,565

7,856 8,504
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9.

DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 9.
The remuneration of the above directors fell within the
following bands:

Nil — HK$1,000,000 T & % 1,000,0007T
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 75 # 1,000,001 7T &
7 #1,500,0007C
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 75 81,500,001 T &
% ¥ 2,000,0007T
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 75 12,000,001 T &
& 2,500,0007TC
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 75 # 2,500,001 7T &
75 # 3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 75 #3,000,001 T &

% ¥ 2,500,0007T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors as compensation for loss of office. For
the year ended 31st March, 2002, an aggregate
emoluments of HK$2,565,000 was paid by the Group to
two executive directors as compensation for loss of office.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as a discretionary bonus or an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group and none of the directors has

waived any emoluments in both years.

ziﬂlﬁ(ff’f)
MEEZME D RIBRATAR -

2003 2002
—ET=F i oL 3
Number of Number of

directors directors
EEAY EZAH
13 10

FR AEBYERESIMAMSE
AEEBEE BHEZTT-F=A=
+—BLEE AKEAREHRTE
EX e A LB 2,565,000T1EA
BEERAS(E -

AEBYERAESTIMNEMME - 1F
RIEA -~ MBAKEHINALSEE
B o LA EFEEREEAE
EREEAMMS -
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10. EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS 10.
The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2002: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out above. The details of the
remuneration of the remaining two (2002: two) highest
paid employees are set out below:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & « 2B K E Y F
Retirement benefits scheme contribution 3B K 1& | 51 I £t 7%
Compensation for loss of office Bt gk B 18

The remuneration of the above two (2002: two) highest
paid employees fell within the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75 # 1,000,001 &
7 ¥ 1,500,0007T
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 72,500,001 L&
75 % 3,000,000
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 75 # 8,000,001 &

75 #8,500,0007T

ERZH£

rFEEREGERFTRERE=4(ZZ%
ToF:=ZR)EF FEZHEEH
REX - ESRAB(ZZET-F : @

Z)EmFEEZHeWT
2003 2002
—EE=E —BE-F
HK$"000 HK$'000
BETRT BETR
3,824 4,281
= 7
- 6,400
3,824 10,688

FME(ZERF : MB) BRaH
BEZMEDHIBRATAR :

2003 2002
—28=F —E8%-F
Number of Number of
employees employees

PN BE A
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12.

TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is payable by the
Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries since they had
no assessable profit for the year. The charge for the year
represents profit tax arising in the PRC and in Taiwan
which is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
areas.

Details of unprovided deferred taxation are set out in
note 26.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share for the year is
based on the net loss for the year of HK$364,864,000
(2002: HK$69,616,000) and the weighted average
number of 10,749,409,000 (2002: 7,361,716,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the exercise of the potential ordinary shares since
their exercise would result in a reduction in loss per
share.

Financial Statements

11.

12.

nm
HRAARREEENBARRNER
I 4 &SRS A - B IR B S R
SELBENEHEE - AFEXH
TERTERREGEELEZMER
WIRESHBERZHEFE

RBEIRED A FIE BRI FE26

SEER
%§$;§ﬂémﬁﬁ$¢fﬁgﬁi%gﬁ
75 364,864,000 (Z T T = F ¢
#69, 6160007u)&¢ma%§1755_ﬁ§
DNEF98010,749,409,000 (= Z =
— 4 :7,361,716,0000%) s+ & -

BRTEEEE BERBERERER
W MR EE SR ERE Y &
BREELBIREITE -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Leasehold

[and and Leasehold
buildings  improvements

BELH HEH
RigF 44
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
THE GROUP 558
COST B
At 1st April, 2002 W-EE-%#mA-A 5,706 20871
Additions AE - 1,658
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEHELF 473 1223
Disposals L& - (4239)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEAT = (1,243)
Transfer 2 - -
At 31t March, 2003 HNoEE-F-f-1-A 6,179 18,270
DEPRECIATION, i BERRRAE
AMORTISATION AND
ACCUMULATED
IMPAIRMENT
At 1st April, 2002 W-EE-%#mA-A 3,835 11,660
Provided for the year EnRg 62 5,293
Eliminated on disposals HERH - (2,830)
Eliminated on disposal of ~ HENBAAEHE
subsidiaries - (1,243)
At 31t March, 2003 N-Z5zF=f=1-A 3,897 12,880
NET BOOK VALUES KasE
At 31t March, 2003 HNoEE-F-f-1-A 2,282 5390

At 315t March, 2002 NZZF-F=f=1-A 1,871 9211

13.

Plant and
machinery

L
HKS$'000
g

57687
2759
100,681

(14)
(5,487)
164

155,790

17680
12,340

(14)

@177

21,829

127961

40,007

ME - -BBERRM

Furniture,

fixtures

and
Motor equipment  Construction
vehies BB KE  inprogress
& LEL ] EEIR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHTT BHTT o
3,784 13,013 102
1,975 1,658 62
1,950 13,398 =
(881) (75) -
(19) (1,384) -
= = (164)
6,709 26,610 -
558 3382 =
843 3,206 =
(125) (52) =
(81) (358) -
1,195 6,178 =
5,514 20432 -
3226 9,631 102

Total
it
HK$'000
BT

101,163
8,112

117725
(5,209)
(8,233)

213,558

37115
21,744
(3,021)

(3,859)

51,979

161,579

64,048
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13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13.

At 31st March, 2003, the leasehold land and buildings
are situated in Hong Kong and are held under medium-
term leases.

Included in property, plant and equipment are assets
held under finance leases with net book values of
HK$79,377,000 (2002: HK$220,000).

MR BBRBE (EZ)
R-ZBEZT=F=A=+—H #HEL
H RABF R EF AL P HHEOR
5o

S BEBREBRERLD
?%EE‘DE?E/?TE}%M79,377,OOO7E(f'{
— 4 B ¥220,0007T) 2EE °

GOODWILL 14. EwE
THE GROUP
xEE
HK$000
BETT
GROSS AMOUNT EEC]
At 1st April, 2002 RZZEZE-_FMW™A—H 122,504
Acquisition of subsidiaries Ui B BT &8 A &) 126,944
Disposal of subsidiaries & B A A (96,421)
At 31st March, 2003 RZZEZE=F=F=+—H 153,027
AMORTISATION AND HEREBRE
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT
At 1st April, 2002 R-_ZEZE—FpmA—H 17,097
Amortised for the year F N 5 15,626
Impairment loss recognised ERABREREE 71,370
Eliminated on disposal o6 B A ] R L
of subsidiaries (15,092)
At 31st March, 2003 RZZEZE=F=A=+—H 89,001
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31st March, 2003 R—_ZEZE=F=A=+—H 64,026
At 31st March, 2002 RZZEZE-_F=A=+—H 105,407
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14. GOODWILL (Continued)
Goodwill is amortised on a straight line basis over a
period of 10 years.

At the balance sheet date, the directors reviewed the
carrying value of goodwill with reference to its future
economic benefits expected to be generated.
Impairment loss of HK$71,370,000 has been
identified and recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment
loss recognised

14.

15.

JEEMR - AR AR
ERRBEE R

me (A
BEUNEREZRER/B+FHIH -

REEH  ZESEEHFIECZEBR
B T2EZHBHIRABREEZE
EF = o ABUE®71,370,0007T 2
BEBBEEEANFE RREE RaRE

MEBLARZERE
THE COMPANY
FATH

2003 2002
ZE¥T=F —¥TCF
HK$"000 HK$"000
EETRT BETRT
121,049 60,410
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. MEBARZERE (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st ARRZEEWMBRARANR-ZSE=F
March, 2003 are as follows: —A=+—HZHBWT :
Proportion of Issued and
Place of nominal value of fully paid
incorporation issued share capital/ ordinary share
or registration/ registered capital held capital/
Name operations by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
FATEHE BETRAR
AR ZERTTRE /R LERRE/
&% Hit/EEDE BRAEELBI ZMEx TEEER
Directly Indirectly
E# el &
Evergain Properties Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$10,000  Property holding
KHDEBERA i A¥10000n  HENEK
Shanghai New Culture TV PRC - 48% RMB5,000,000  Production of
And Radio Making Co., Ltd. television programmes
(Note 1) and sales of
multi-media products
LEFERERREARAR E AR¥5000000r BREAAZEREE
(Rit1) SRBED
SilkOnNet.com Hong Kong = 60% HK$100,000  Investment holding
Company Limited
EMBERRBRAA B %0000 REZRK
Leadership Publishing Group Cayman lslands/ 20% 55% HK$23,421,209  Investment holding
Limited ("Leadership Publishing") Hong Kong

(formerly known as “Sing Pao
Media Group Limited")
BRERLREE REHE/EE B%234212097  REERK
BRAH
(TRREHE])
(M REEEE
BRAA)
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. MEBARZERE (&)
Proportion of Issued and
Place of nominal value of fully paid
incorporation issued share capital/ ordinary share
or registration/ registered capital held capital/
Name operations by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
FAERE EETRAR
MR ZERTRE/ER LdkkE/
&8 it/ EERY RAmEER A dfhEs EEH
Directly Indirectly
Ef Bl &
STR Media Limited British Virgin - 80% US$100  Investment holding
Islands ("BVI")/
Hong Kong
STR Media Limited AREARE/BR 100X  REAER
Sun New Media Company PRC = 90% US$3,300,000  Production of digital
Limited (Note 1) transmissions and
multi-media
development
services
NG EEERAA i 3300000%7T BEEBERR
(HfzE1) SEBERRY
Sun Satellite Television Company Hong Kong - 100% HK$100  Provision of satellite
Limited ("Sun Satellite") television programmes
BrEEERERAT & B¥I00T REFESREHA
([BExEE])
Sun Television Cybemetworks Hong Kong - 100% HK$100  Investment holding
Company Limited
BrAXBHEER ) BT REBK
ARAF
Sun Television Cybernetworks Hong Kong = 100% HK$10,000  Management services

Enterprise Limited
("Sun Enterprise”)

BrAXBEER LK B BH¥10000T  ERRE
BRAR(HERE])
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. MEBARZERE (&)
Proportion of Issued and
Place of nominal value of fully paid
incorporation issued share capital/ ordinary share

or registration/

registered capital held

capital/

Name operations by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
FAERE EETRAR
AL ZERTRE/ER LdkkE/
2% it/ EERY RAmEER A dfhEs EEH
Directly Indirectly
Ef el &

Sun Television New Media BVI/Hong Kong - 100% US$1  Broadband development

Limited RERLES/ X1 REEHRE
)

TREXELESER AR PRC - 100% US8500,000  Provision of advertising
(formerly known as "3t R[5 £ agency services
EREERATY) (ote 1)

(FIBtRGEERE e 50000057 REBEERERS
BRARI) (K1)

Beijing Jingwen Records Company PRC - 100% RMB30,000,000  Distribution and sales of
Limited ("Jingwen Records") multi-media products
(Note 2)

ERRXBRBRAT Gk AR®30000000T ETRHE
(TRXBR]) (Kat2) SREED

Beijing Jingwen Multi-media PRC - 70% RMB2,000,000  Distribution and sales of
Education Company Limited licensed educational
("lingwen Education”) (Note 2) products

ERRXSRBERARAA E AR%2,000000T AHRHEZF
(TRX%5]) (Ki2) BREM

ERELRXEERITAERAA PRC - 100% RMB1,000,000  Publication
('RXEE") (Note 2)

(Htit2) G AR®1,0000007 itk
m)enpin
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15.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

&R

Satellite Entertainment
Communication Co. Ltd.

BEREERERNARAT

Actiwater Resources Limited

China Youth Net.com Limited

TEEERERAR

Designate Success Limited

First Brilliant Limited

Optima Media Holding Limited

Sing Pao Newspaper Assets
Limited
RBRTEEBRAA

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

LA
it/ BB

Taiwan

BVI
RBRAES

Hong Kong
R

BVI
RBRAES

BVI
RBRAES

BVI

AERIES

Hong Kong

Bk

15.
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
RATHE
ZEBTRE/HR
RAmEELH
Directly Indirectly
E& Bl &
= 60%
— 75%
— 75%
— 75%
= 75%
= 75%
= 75%

Issued and

fully paid
ordinary share
capital/
registered capital
ERTRAR
LiakRE/
dfEx

NTD100,000,000

#14%100,000,0007

US$1

E

HK$2
ok

US$100
100X 7T

USs1
E

Us$100

100%7T

HK$2

BT

MBARMZERE (&)

Principal activities

Ex 2 3]

Provision of cable
broadcasting services
of programmes

REBREHE
ERERS

Investment holding
REZRK

Investment holding
REZRK

Investment holding

REZRK

Investment holding
REZRK

Holding of intangible
asset and investment
holding

REENEE
REERR

Holding of fixed assets

HBETEE
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

&R

Sing Pao Newspaper Company
Limited (“Sing Pao Newspaper")
RHBHERAA
(TRR%HT])

Sing Pao Newspaper
Distribution Limited
RRBTRTERRA

Sing Pao Newspaper
Management Limited

RERHERERAR

Sing Pao Newspaper Services
Limited

RHRBTIREBRLA

StarEastNet (BVI) Limited

StarEastNet.com Management
Limited

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

LA
it/ BB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

Bk

Hong Kong

Bk

Hong Kong

BVI
RBRAES

Hong Kong

15.
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
RATHE
ZEBTRE/HR
RAmEELH
Directly Indirectly
E& Bl &
— 75%
= 75%
— 75%
= 75%
= 75%
= 75%

Issued and

fully paid
ordinary share
capital/
registered capital
ERTRAR
LiakRE/
dfEx

HK$2

BT

HK$2

ok

HK$2

BT

HK$2

ok

US$1,000
1,000£ 7

HK$2

BT

MBARMZERE (&)

Principal activities

Ex 2 3]

Newspaper publication

HELR

Provision of

management services

%E{/\ B @H&i%

Provision of
management services

RHERRE

Provision of nominee
services and secretarial
services

REREARSE
RWE RS

Investment holding

REER

Provision of corporate
management services

RERAERRY
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

&R

Tech Merit Limited

Wah Fung Book Store Limited

ERERBRAA

Wide Angle Press Limited

BEARLRILARAR

IRREERBEEERN
BB R (Note T) (K1)

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

LA
it/ BB

BVI
RBRAES

Hong Kong
R

Hong Kong

Bk

PRC

PE

Financial Statements

"HHE W

15.
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital held
by the Company
RATHE
ZEBTRE/HR
RAmEELH
Directly Indirectly
Ef Bl &

- 75%

- 75%

- 75%

- 45%

MBARMZERE (&)

Issued and

fully paid
ordinary share
capital/
registered capital
ERTRAR
LiakRE/
dfEx

Uss1
E

HK$796,000
796,000

HK$918,400

%1918,4007T

RMB5,000,000

AR #5,000,0007T

Principal activities

Ex 2 3]

Investment holding
REZRK

Investment holding
RAZRK

Magazines and books
publication

B RERLM

Provision of networking
and information services

REBELERRE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

M

©)

Sino-foreign equity joint venture established in PRC.

The equity interest is held by individual nominees on
behalf of the Company.

Jingwen Records, Jingwen Education and R X B #£ (the
“Jingwen Group”) are domestic enterprises in the PRC
owned legally by PRC nationals. Due to the various
agreements in place, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company based on a legal opinion from a reputable
PRC law firm, the Company has effective control over
the operational and financial policies of the Jingwen
Group and therefore the latter has been included as
subsidiaries of the Company since date of acquisition
during the year.

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of

the particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive

length and therefore the above list contains only the

subsidiaries which principally affect the results or assets

and liabilities of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

outstanding during the year or at the end of the year.

Financial Statements

15.

MBARMZERE (&)

Hfaz

M

@

EERA/FEIE
BBERILE Bl ERRFIHARE

RABEKRIZPIEERE -

BRARM ST R ENREAREK
RRBHEE °

RXER  RXFERRXEE
(IRXEE]) ImpEEALAE
FAEZTEBEANRE - ARAES
R RETBEERZMT AR
BER - BRERIZZERHE  BA
RAHERANEE 2K ERMBHEK
R BEBRESE - Mg E IRE R
FRZWHE BB EARR R ZH
BRAA -

2HHBRRZERNE

BXENEERABAREATEZH

Bra] e

RERHFRE - %MTE”&E*E%%%

BEAARE

R EBES
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Financial

i

16. PURCHASED PROGRAMME RIGHTS

At 1st April

Programme rights acquired

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Disposal of a subsidiary

Charged to the income statement

At 31st March

Carrying amount analysed

for reporting purposes as:

Current
Non-current

Statements

16.

REA—H
BAZEE B E
W BB B 1B 2 )
el Yoy N

B Y& R H Bk

R=A=+—8H

A2/ ML
ZRREED T
ik
R

A ZE B EeRiE
THE GROUP
AEE

2003 2002
—EFE=F - =1 =l 3
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BETIT
28,632 12,932
21,749 30,646
8,968 =
(1,302) =
(25,293) (14,946)
32,754 28,632

= 3,272

32,754 25,360
32,754 28,632
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17.

INVENTORIES 17.
The inventories of the Group represents finished goods
which included an amount of HK$33,000 (2002: Nil)
carried at net realisable value at the balance sheet date.
DEBTORS, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 18.

Financial Statements

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 180

days to its trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors at the

balance sheet date:

Current

1 — 60 days overdue
61 — 90 days overdue
Over 90 days overdue

Trade debtors

Prepayments and deposits

B1EA
BH—ERTHA
BEANRtT—ENTH
BHAT B E

B 2NN
BNRBERRE

78

AEBZGEERERKR  REER
BERAEHEFEINR 2 BEEE
33,000 (ZEE=F &) o

BER AN RARES
AEBGETESEF 2 EEBETHN
F=+E-BTATATE -

AT RESEYRRNEE R 2RI
i

THE GROUP
A&EE

2003 2002
—BE=E —BE-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
42,507 78,942
9,641 14,325
1,592 914
6,117 3,602
59,857 97,783
72,454 21,356
132,311 119,139
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19.

THE GROUP

Equity securities
Listed in Hong Kong
Listed in the United

Financial Statements

i

States of America (Note)

Unlisted
Unlisted debt securities
Listed warrants

Market values of
listed securities

Carrying amount
analysed for reporting
pUrposes as:

Current
Non-current

THE COMPANY
Equity securities

Listed in Hong Kong
Unlisted debt securities
Listed warrants

Market values of
listed securities

Carrying amount
analysed for reporting
purposes as:

Current
Non-current

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Other securities

HiEH
2003 2002
—BF¥=E —TEC-E
HK$'000  HK$'000
EETT EBETX
58
AR AR 3 5
REB LT = =
REFRARE
tm (Kfa) 53,557 =
E1 3ol 4,127 =
#tmf & 31,200 31,560
HX*’EM - -
88,884 31,560
tHmEEZTE
608,400 =
BERMELZ
BEEN
nE = =
ELiok )] 88,884 31,560
88,884 31,560
b, N
RAE S
REB LT = =
ELEMEEES - 31,200
imﬂﬂX*Em - -
= 31,200
tWmEHZTE
BERMELZ
REED
mE - _
k)] - 31,200
= 31,200

19. BHFERHE
Trading securities

BEEES
2003 2002
—¥T=HF -BT-E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR BT
1,888 661
41 -
1,929 661
1,929 944
1,929 661
1,929 661
555 661
41 -
596 661
596 944
596 661
596 661

Total

st
2003 2002
—BB=f -BE-E
HK$'000 HK$000
EEFr HBAETx
1,888 661
53,557 -
4,127 =
31,200 31,560
41 =
90,813 32,221
610,329 944
1,929 661
88,884 31,560
90,813 32,221
555 661
- 31,200
41 =
596 31,861
596 944
596 661
- 31,200
596 31,861
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Note:

The amount represents the Group’s investment in Asia
Premium Television Group, Inc. ("ASTV") (formerly known
as GTM Holdings Inc.), a company incorporated in the
State of Nevada of the United States of America with its
shares traded on a stock exchange system in the United
States of America, with a carrying amount of
HK$53,557,000. The Group's investment represents a
24% holding of the ordinary shares in ASTV. ASTV is not
regarded as an associate of the Group because the Group

has no significant influence over its affairs.

Due to narrowness of the market of ASTV's listed shares
and in view of the large number of ASTV's listed shares
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the
directors consider that the market price is not a reliable
indicator of fair value. Accordingly, the investment in
ASTV's listed shares were stated at the carrying amount
of subsidiaries exchanged in acquisition of the

investments.

Financial Statements
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EHRR (&)

Hfaz

7 2CR8 Th 4 7N S= B 7 Asia Premium
Television Group, Inc. ([ASTV]) (B
8 GTM Holdings Inc.) (2 &1 T3
ER RS RE AN EEZ M MK
Hkﬁ#%ﬂgAle%%Q%
T R % T)EHEME BB
53,557,000%2&@ o REEZ K
B ThIE R A ASTVEY i@ ik 2 24004
% o ARAKBEEASTV.Z ¥ &
BAYET  MZARLTRIER

REZBEAT -

BRASTVZ ETRRD 2 T35 -
AR ERREBRNEE BIFAASTV
ZRELTRG  MESRAME
WA FEEZAIFEIERZR - Bt
FASTVZ TR 15 Th iz i 7 B 1%
EEEMBIRZHE AR ZEEE
HIRR ©
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20. CREDITORS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUED 20.
CHARGES
The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors at the
balance sheet date:

0 - 60 days TEXTH
61 — 90 days ART—ENTH
Over 90 days A+HE
Trade creditors B 5 R
Other creditors, deposits HiEAHRIE BlEE
received and accrued charges REEET B
21. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS OF 21.

A SUBSIDIARY
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

EMfER ElhEeRENER

UTEENERREEBZRED
o
THE GROUP
A&EE

2003 2002

—BE=HE —BE-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

29,429 7,472

6,174 3,413

7317 7,004

42,920 17,889

92,637 31,179

135,557 49,068
EBHELABRLHBERRIEA

ZRAEEER - 2B REEEER

H o
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22. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 22, FEEHEHRIE
THE GROUP REE
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
=RES REELZHRE
2003 2002 2003 2002
—BE¥=F "BT-HF —BT=HF —BT-E
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
EETT EETRT EETT EETRT
Amounts payable under BMEMELHT
finance leases ZIEN &
Within one year —F R 8,380 76 7,681 67
In the second to fifth year S -—ZFHF
inclusive (BREERMF) 10,181 153 9,858 136
18,561 229 17,539 203
Less: Future finance o RRELE B A
charges (1,022) (26)
Present value of lease MEAEZRE
obligations 17,539 203
Less: Amount due for W —F AR R
settlement within 2 8 (DR
one year (shown EIN=RED)
under current
liabilities) (7,681) (67)
Amount due for settlement — 1% 2| 8 & (- Z £ 58
after one year 9,858 136

The Group entered into finance leasing arrangements for
certain of its machinery. The average lease term is four
years. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

AEEREE THEBTULREAND
B2 - FHBROMANSF - FTAME
KIGAERERELEFTE - LEILK
A RIART LR HE
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23. BORROWINGS 23. fEH
THE GROUP
XEHE
2003 2002
—EBE=F —BFT-HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Borrowings comprise BEBEIATRE
the following:
Bank borrowings: RITEE
Bank loans RITEXR 10,829 11,111
Mortgage loans RIBE X 821 1,323
11,650 12,434
Convertible bonds Al AR (& 5
(Note a) (Kt zta) 1,560 -
Shareholders’ loans EERE R
(Note b) (K4 5£b) 20,181 31,200
33,391 43,634
Secured HHEE 8,052 12,434
Unsecured mEH 25,339 31,200
33,391 43,634

THE COMPANY

F28
2003 2002
—TT=F C—¥EC-F
HK$'000  HK$'000
EEFRT EETT
1,560 =
- 31,200
1,560 31,200
1,560 31,200
1,560 31,200
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23. BORROWINGS (Continued) 23. &8 (&)
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEE AAT
2003 2002 2003 2002
—EE=F "BT-F —TTFT=HF —FTT-H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT EETRT EETRT EBETRT
The bank borrowings RITEEAR
are repayable as follows: THHREE
Within one year —F R 11,367 7,169 = =
More than one year but —F Bk
not exceeding two years BB B W 283 4,982 - -
More than two years but M4 A £
not exceeding five years BRBBRIF - 283 - -
11,650 12,434 - -
Convertible bonds A R & 55
(Note a) (Kt &ta) 1,560 - 1,560 -
Shareholders' loans REREER
(Note b) (Kaxb) 20,181 31,200 = 31,200
33,391 43,634 1,560 31,200
Less: amount due within B FIERE BT
one year classified Z —F RN E H
as current liabilities b (11,367) (7,169) - -
Amount due after one year — F & 5|z 858 22,024 36,465 1,560 31,200
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23.

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(@

Pursuant to a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) entered into between the Company and
Cosmos Media Investments Limited (“Cosmos Media"),
the Company granted Cosmos Media rights to subscribe
for a series of convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of up to US$26,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$202,800,000) in up to 3 tranches.
On 9th July, 2002, the subscription of the tranche 1
bonds for the principal amount of US$6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$46,800,000) was
completed. Up to the balance sheet date, a principal
amount of US$5,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$45,240,000) was converted into 560,630,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company.

On 27th August, 2002, Cosmos Media agreed to forfeit
its rights to the tranche 2 and tranche 3 bonds pursuant
to the Subscription Agreement and the Company agreed
to grant to Cosmos Media an option (the “Option”) to
subscribe for additional new ordinary shares of HK$0.02
each in the Company for a total value of US$4,000,000
at any time from 27th August, 2002 up to and including
the maturity date of the tranche 1 bonds at any of the
actual conversion prices of the tranche 1 bonds which
the holder of the tranche 1 bonds has actually adopted
as the conversion price of the tranche 1 bonds into the
ordinary shares of the Company. Up to the balance sheet
date, none of the Option had been exercised by Cosmos
Media.

Unless previously cancelled, redeemed or converted, the
convertible bonds would be redeemed at 100% of the

principal amount on 8th July, 2005.

Financial Statements

23.

a5 (4
GES

(3

g)

R 4% &K X 7] B2 Cosmos Media

Investments Limited ( [ Cosmos
Medial ) FTZ 2 RE =% ([REH

%) AR FECosmos Mediaf Hi
ARE—RIEZH =M K&
B i % ¥ 26,000,000k 7T (H 1%
7 #202,800,0007T) 2 A # R &
(o R-_ZTT_F+tANB  F&
#6,000,0003% 7T (A 4HE R B &
46,800,0007T) 2 £ —#EHE R
fEThR - BE#AEH - 5,800,000
%7t (MRS KRB 45,240,0007T)
Z AL EBE X A560,630,0000%
ARREREEREE002TZ LR

B o

R=ZTZT-_FNA=+tA
Cosmos Mediald ZHUS H R B R
BERAE_MEF-MESZE
F » A2 7 Z [ Cosmos Media
BREAERBARARARSREESSE
0.02LH E Bz R ([RK
#]) » #f8%4,000,000%7T * R
BHA-ZTT-_F/\A=-++tHE
EE—HEFZBHA (BEZB) L
EREE - BRAE—HEHFZF

BABBRRBERBE —#HESK
BARRBEARZHBERE - BE

#HE H - Cosmos Mediat A& 1T {# 1L
A BARHE ©

BRIEEE R - BRI EE - A
ARBREFER_ETRELAN
HIZA 4 5 100%E @ -



Notes to the

Bt % 8 &5 M

EL=F=-A=+—-RHLEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

BE=

23.

BORROWINGS (Continued)

(b)

Pursuant to a deed of settlement dated 24th January,
2003, China Strategic Holdings Limited, Hanny Holdings
Limited and Star East Holdings Limited (collectively
referred to as the “Creditors”), the substantial
shareholders of Leadership Publishing prior to the
completion of acquisition of a controlling interest in
Leadership Publishing by the Company (the
“Completion”), agreed to reduce the total outstanding
amount of the loans due from Leadership Publishing
and its subsidiary of HK$104,310,000 to HK$60,000,000
(the "Reduced Loan”) and to waive the remaining

outstanding balance.

Pursuant to assignment deeds, the Creditors agreed to
assign HK$40,000,000 out of the Reduced Loan to the
Company. The consideration will be satisfied by the issue
and allotment of 400,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.02 each at the expiry of 24 months after
Completion, on 24th January, 2003.

The remaining balance of the Reduced Loan of
HK$20,000,000 is unsecured, bears interest at Hong
Kong prime interest rate per annum and is repayable on
the expiry of 30 calendar months after the year end of
the first profitable financial year after the Completion
provided that the payment date shall not fall after the

twentieth anniversary of the date of the Completion.

Financial Statements
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B8 (4
(b)

Z)
BE—HRZTE=F—A=+mHm
HIIZZEEZE  HREEAR
AR RESEAFRAD A KRR G
NEBBRAR (GEIERAL -
BOIR A HEFE A8 AR 1 B SE Bk Wi (152
D AIZEZRR - REBHRNRHE
BERENMBARZBRZ GAERE
X ABFE R 7 104,310,0007T Bl R
Z %% 60,000,0007T ([ 4 & &
) ARERGERT MRER &
g% o

REERZE  ERABRESLH
BB ZREE % 5 5 40,000,0007T F A
cRETVEBRN_TT=F
—RZ+TWMBZEKRE=+NEA
ERRETREZEEREESE
0.027T 2 3 & i i 400,000,000 4%
XAt e

A HIR B R 2 #2788 #520,000,000
TRAEER REBZEBIFMNE
PR RIAREKE S @R K
Elﬁiﬁiaésomﬁﬂfﬁﬁ%ﬁ
MR KB BISE ATER B Hi R
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SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each

Authorised:
At 1st April, 2001, 31st March, 2002

and 31st March, 2003

Issued and fully paid:
At 1st April, 2001

Shares issued for acquisition of
a subsidiary

Placement of shares

Conversion of convertible bonds

Conversion of preference shares

Exercise of share options

At 31st March, 2002

Shares issued for acquisition
of subsidiaries
Subscription of shares
Placement of shares
Conversion of convertible bonds
(Note 23(a))
Exercise of share options

At 31st March, 2003

Financial

Statements

24,

| A
|

+ 4+ |1 m
e 4 - 4
m 4

s &
P B s T
[11 A3 1] 4

BEITREE
RZTT—F
mA—H
BATREAD LA

W B BT B A A
Pt & AR 19
Higa R E 5
HigE xR
1710 BB AR A

R-TT_F
=A=+—H”
24

Bk MG
LAUR BE BT /B 2 )

R

it & B 15

Higa R EH
(K #£23(a))

17150 8 AR A

R-_FFE=F

ZA=t+—Hz&EH%

B+
Number
of shares
i3 & B
Notes ‘000
B aF T+

33,000,000

6,136,616

500,000
1,673,000
644,290
340,000
9,700

9,303,606
(a) 2,563,056
(b) 300,000
© 940,000

560,630
93,500

13,760,792

Amount
B
HK$000
BETR

660,000

122,732

10,000
33,460
12,886
6,800
194

186,072
51,261
6,000
18,800

11,213
1,870

275,216
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Acquisition of the subsidiaries

()

Pursuant to a conditional agreement dated 9th
April, 2002 (“Conditional Agreement”) entered
into between Sun Television Cybernetworks
(B.V.I.) Company Limited, its name changed to
Sun Publishing Holdings Limited on 14th August,
2002 (“SPH"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Mr. Xu Zhongmin and Chum
Investment Corporation, SPH shall acquire the
entire issued share capital of Media Pioneer
Limited, its name changed to Jingwen
Entertainment Group Limited on 14th August,
2002 ("JEG"), at a total consideration of
HK$90,000,000 which was satisfied by the issue
and allotment of 458,715,596 ordinary shares
of the Company at HK$0.1308 per share, and
as to the balance, in cash. Up to the balance
sheet date, 355,504,587 ordinary shares of the
Company were issued at HK$0.108 per share.

At the balance sheet date, there were remaining
103,211,009 ordinary shares of the Company
issue of which was subject to the achievement
of minimum profit guarantee pursuant to the

Conditional Agreement.

Financial Statements

24,

Bx (&)
Hiat -
(a) W B Bt I A 51
0 BEARFRZZ2EWER

A Sun

Cybernetworks

Television
(B.V.1)
Company Limited (A =%
TZFNATHBENRE
% 1 /& Sun Publishing
Holdings  Limited)
([SPH]) - FEBREER
ITRERKEERAFTRN
T -_FWABNAGT
2B GG mE (THRER
#1) » SPH#E I i Media
Pioneer Limited (74 =
—FNA+THEAEREA
8 & Jingwen Entertainment
Group Limited) ([JEG]) Z
2HEBITRE - REAL
# 7378 #90,000,0007T
Ty i B BT R B ¥
458,715,596 R A1 B & i@
B SREBRES
0.13087T - M #R%E A A R
XM - BEAER - K
AF)Z 355,504,587 1% & il
REZFRAK0.108 T
T °

Pl

REE B - RIBEA KSR
A E R R MR E
o A 103,211,0098%
AARLEBEBRZBTAR
BEFRIR
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24.

B

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of the subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to an conditional agreement dated 18th
April, 2002 entered into between Sun Television
Enterprise Holdings Limited (“STEH"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Wu
Chien-Chiang, STEH acquired the entire issued
share capital of Profit Trade Developments
Limited (“PTD") at a total consideration of
HK$45,000,000 which was satisfied by the issue
and allotment of 100,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company at HK$0.15 per share, and as
to the balance, in cash. The shares were issued
at HK$0.108 per share.

Pursuant to an agreement dated 23rd November,
2002 entered into among the Company and
the Creditors, the Company acquired
258,066,950 issued shares in Leadership
Publishing, representing approximately 55.09%
of the issued share capital of Leadership
Publishing as at 23rd November, 2002. The
consideration was satisfied by the issue and
allotment of 1,548,401,700 ordinary shares of
the Company.

Upon Completion, the Company was required
under Rule 26 of the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers to make the
unconditional mandatory offers (the "Offers")
to acquire all the issued shares in Leadership
Publishing other than those already acquired by
the Company and parties acting in concert with
it on the basis of six ordinary shares in the
Company of HK$0.02 each for one share in
Leadership Publishing of HK$0.05 each (the
"Offer Shares") or a cash alternative of HK$0.36

for each share in Leadership Publishing.

Financial Statements

24,

Bx (&)
(a)
(i)
(iii)

WREM B AT (&)

BREBEARA ZZ2EMBR
AlSun Television Enterprise
Holdings Limited ([ STEHJ)
RRBALEENR_TT=
FMA+TNBEMZZE K
% & - STEHUL B Profit
Trade Developments
Limited ([PTD])) 2 2 &8 E
BORAEA  KEABRRE
¥ 45,000,0007T © JviE @
%47 ] L 3 100,000,000%
AR EBRINMN - 8
EBRAE0.15T « éh
BRAIARE XN - RHOBE
REREE0.108TTEAT

BIRA R R EEEASZS
FRZIBETZF+—AZ
+=RFIuZzH®E AR
AINEBRAREEZ B #1T
%19 258,066,9508% * 1518
REERZZZ_F+—
AZ+=RZB#ITRA
#955.09% ° KB HEBE
17 &2 % 1,548,401,7008%
ARATERBBRZAS -

RFEREF - ANQ A BRE
BB R A W KA T8
25 2614 IR HY A A4 4R 5 il 1
Wz (EERE] I
BHIEHAABREH —
BOBALEREZBA
HEE2HEBITRN

Bl AR EREEBEO
02T Z ANAT LR - #
B — IR EE % 0.057T
ZBRARHERER M ([ &R
B1) » RAEERR S B
0.367C ] ER F AR 3R 1 7% i
B -
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24.

B

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of the subsidiaries (Continued)

(iii)

Upon the close of the Offers on 25th February,
2003, 116,325,281 and 93,191,563 shares,
aggregately representing 44.73% of the issued
share capital of Leadership Publishing, were
tendered for acceptance by selecting the cash
alternative and the Offer Shares respectively. A
total of 559,149,378 ordinary shares of the

Company was issued.

On 14th March, 2003, pursuant to a placing
agreement entered into between the Company
and a placing agent on 23rd November, 2002,
116,326,000 shares in Leadership Publishing
were placed to a number of independent
investors not connected with the directors, chief
executive or substantial shareholders of the
Company or its subsidiaries or their respective

associates, at a price of HK$0.36 per share.

Immediately following the completion of the
placing, the Company holds approximately
74.99% of the total issued share capital of
Leadership Publishing.

Financial Statements

24,

B (&)

(a)

WEEMB AT ()

(iii)

R-BETZ=F_F=-+H
HEBEZERE - R
¥ F 116,325,281 &
93,191,563 /% 3R 1 i 58 AR
B2 RR (KRR EER
BT AR 44.73%) 9 Bl iR
EENEERSREER
% o A 559,149,378 A
AR E@EKRE T -

TE=F=-A+mH©
CIRR AR A AR SR
BR-ZFT-_F+—A=
+=HFuzREEHE
116,326,000/% 38 X 1 HE A%
NEBEETFTBEIRESE (K
EDEADNARENER
AIZEE  THAEHKE
ERFARESG2HE
ATIWEBEE) - FRES
ABEEE0.367T °
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SREEEFETKE - A
RAFBRREREZE
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24.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

()

Subscription of shares

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 13th
September, 2002 entered into between the Company
and Excel Asia Profits Limited (“Excel Asia") in which
Ms. Yang Lan and Mr. Xu Zhongmin, directors of the
Company, have 80% and 20% beneficial interests,
respectively, Excel Asia subscribed for 300,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company at a
price of HK$0.10 per share. The price of HK$0.10 per
share represented a premium of approximately 42.86%
to the closing price per share of HK$0.07 as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on 13th September, 2002 and a
premium of approximately 42.86% to the average closing
price of the shares for the last ten trading days on and
prior to 13th September, 2002 of HK$0.07 per share.
The net proceeds of the subscription was intended to
be used as general working capital for the Group.

Placement of shares

On 16th October, 2002, an arrangement was made for
a placing and subscription of 940,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company to a number
of independent investors not connected with the
directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of
the Company or its subsidiaries or their respective
associates at a price of HK$0.06 per share. The price of
HK$0.06 per share represented a premium of
approximately 3.45% to the closing share price per share
of HK$0.058 as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 11th
October, 2002 and a discount of approximately 0.33%
over the average closing price of the shares for the last
ten trading days on and prior to 11th October, 2002 of
HK$0.0602 per share. The net proceeds of the placing
was intended to be used for the possible acquisitions of
audio and video distribution business and leading
advertising enterprises in the Greater China Region and
for general working capital for the Group.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with
the then existing shares in all respects.

Financial Statements
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B (&)

(b)

(c)

RS

1R 4% 7N X 7 B2 Excel Asia Profits
Limited ([Excel Asial) (R ARIE=H
HBREZTRITAEREEDAHESR
80% K 20% B s 2 N Al R
gf’ﬁhﬂ T=RiZZRER

* Excel Asiaz? f#300,000,000/%
ZK’AEHXE@@MO.OEEZ%%
AR - BIRAREERBBOI0T °
FRERBECIOTERNNR=F

—FNAT=BEBRAATRK
mEETREEO007TEMB L
42.86% @ WERKHNKR —_TT_F
NA+=8(B#FEZ%A) AlKE+E
5Bz FHRHESZRER0.07
TR B #42.86% c REEHFAB
RIEFHEBREAER —REE

B & %

RZZEZZF+A+B - AA7A
HEZBIREE (RETDERRD
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WEBEE) RBEESE RRE
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002z T EBRFILZH - &
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25. RESERVES
Share
premium
Bt
HK$'000
BETT
THE GROUP *5E
At st April, 2001 RZEE-EMA—H 226,746
Shares issued for B
acquisition of a YENBAR
subsidiary 50,000
Placement of shares, RERH
net of expenses (BMBRER) 130,737
Conversion of HBTARES
convertible bonds 49514
Exercise of share TERRE
options 958
Reserve realised upon ~ (HERTBAAIE
disposal of subsidiaries ~ EH 7 EfE =
Transfer a5
Exchange losses on REZEEH =
translation of FEMES
overseas operations LERER =
Net loss for the year ERERIE =
At 31st March, 2002 RZFZ-£=A=1-H 457,955
Shares issued for BARM AN
acquisition of KEAF
subsidiaries 118,494
Subscription of shares BRI 24,000
Placement of shares, RERH
net of expenses (BNBED) 35,896
Conversion of ARTaRES
convertible bonds 34027
Exercise of share TERRE
options 5412
Shares to be issued BETZRH
(Note 23(b)) (H#23(b)) -
Exchange losses on RAZGNER
translation of REMES
overseas operations ZERBE =
Share of exchange HERAALBRE
reserve by minority BIEELRE
shareholders of a
subsidiary =
Net loss for the year ERERIE =
At 31st March, 2003 RZFR=£==1-H 675,784

Asset
revaluation
reserve

REEf

it
HK$'000
BRI

3,134

(3,078)

(56)

25. f#fm
Translation Capital
reserve reserve
Eifih A4HE
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHfn  EETR
(136) 3,490
(32) -
(168) 3,490
(135) -
34 =
(269) 3,490

Other Accumulated
reserve losses
Hivfite REBE
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT AETR
- (177253)
- 3,078
- 56
- (69616)
- (43735)
40,000 -
- (364,864)
40,000 (608,599)

Total
@
HK$'000
EETT

55,981

50,000
130,737
49,514

958

(32)
(69,616)

217,542
118,494
24,000
35,896
34,027

5,412

40,000

34
(364,864)

110,406
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25.

RESERVES (Continued)

THE COMPANY
At 1st April, 2001

Shares issued for acquisition
of a subsidiary
Placement of shares,
net of expenses
Conversion of convertible bonds
Exercise of share options
Net loss for the year

At 31st March, 2002

Shares issued for acquisition

of subsidiaries
Subscription of shares
Placement of shares,

net of expenses
Conversion of convertible bonds
Exercise of share options
Shares to be issued

(Note 23(b))
Net loss for the year

At 31st March, 2003

Financial

AAT
RZEE—F
mA—H
TR0 DA IR B
i B A A

i & B 9
(BMBRHZ)
HB|a R ES
718 5 e e
FANEEBFE
RIEE_F
=A=+—H
1T AR 10 LA Ui
8 A A
RE MG
i & B 9
(BMBRHZ)
HB|a R ES
718 5 M e
15317 2 IR 1D
(K1 zE23(b))
FAEERFE

*H

i

F

A —H

[ 4y

-+ |1

Statements

Share

premium
B 153 itk 18
HK$'000
EEFT

226,746

50,000

130,737

49,514
958

457,955

118,494
24,000

35,896

34,027
5,412

675,784

o (2

Other Accumulated

reserve
Hibftim

HK$000
EEFT

40,000

40,000

losses
2HEEBE
HK$°000
EETR

(47,907)

(187,116)

(235,023)

(370,977)

(606,000)

Total
@it
HK$'000
BETR

178,839
50,000
130,737
49,514

958
(187,116)

222,932

118,494
24,000

35,896
34,027

5,412

40,000
(370,977)

109,784
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25.

RESERVES (Continued)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation
in November 1992 and the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.

The other reserve of the Group and of the Company
represents the loan assigned by the Creditors which will
be satisfied by the issue and allotment of 400,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each at the expiry of 24
months after Completion.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has no
reserves available for distribution to its shareholders at
the balance sheet date.

However, pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, the Company's share premium account of
HK$675,784,000 at 31st March, 2003 (2002:
HK$457,955,000) can be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

Financial Statements

25.

o (2
AEBzEAFRERE- AN _F
T-RETEBRESAREBZHBR

AZBOEERARBARLRBZE
BITRHEEME ZEZRE -

RNEERAR R 2 H AT IE E#E
ABZEZER  WERTHKE =TT
B A E W ZER%TRAER
400,000,000/% B AR E A& #0.027T 2
MEBBRZA -

EEZRA NHEER  ARAYLER
HOIR TR ZEHE -

A RBEARE-NAN—FQA
E o ARARBR -_EE=ZF=A=1+—
B 2 [ 10 s (8 B £ 45 % 675,784,0007T
(ZEZT=F : %457,955,0007T) A]
LA RARAXDIE °
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26. UNPROVIDED DEFERRED TAXATION 26. XEHEERE
At the balance sheet date, the major components of the REER  ABEFBELCHBEEE (A
unprovided deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows: B)FEBFEWT :
THE GROUP
FEE
2003 2002
—EE=F —E¥E
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BETR
Tax effect of timing differences REMSIBRBLEZRA :
because of:
Excess of tax allowances over MR EEaATE 2 EZ5HE
depreciation (12,446) (3,764)
Estimated tax losses hEt BB E A 114,604 35,844

102,158 32,080
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26. UNPROVIDED DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 26.
The components of the unprovided deferred tax credit
(charge) for the year are as follows:

REBREZERE (&)
RAFEAR  ABHELEHBEESR (X
) B TI&E

THE GROUP
FRE
2003 2002
—BT=HF —BT-F
HK$°000 HK$000
EETT BETR
Tax effect of timing differences REMSIBRBETEZRA :
because of:
Difference between tax allowances MBRRRTE Z5
and depreciation (8,682) 730
Tax losses arising EE BB EE 78,760 3,248
Release of tax losses in respect of BEBUADKRIEER
discontinued operations 2 M EE - (15,991)
70,078 (12,013)

The deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the
financial statements as it is not certain that it will be
realised in the foreseeable future.

HRRESERERBEESENA
RS HREIR - Bt I\ 0 B 75 s

7
e
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27.

Financial Statements

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 27.

NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF

Property, plant and equipment

Purchased programmes rights

Amounts due from customers
for contract work

Debtors, prepayments and deposits

Bank balances and cash

Creditors, deposits received
and accrued charges

Bank overdrafts

Amounts due to customers
for contract work

Obligations under finance leases

Attributable goodwill
(Loss) gain on disposal

SATISFIED BY:

Investments in securities
Cash (Note)

HERBAR (£)
2003 2002
—EFE=F —EEC-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
FIHEZEEFHE
Y - HEERERE 4,374 5,563
BAZEE B 1,302 =
MEMTRERER
Z 7B - 3,057
AR - BARERES 779 3,728
RITHEFE LB 110 4,971
ERERZ BERiES R
FEET & A (11,676) (16,966)
RITIEX = (2,594)
MEAMIRENER
2 FRIE - (2,152)
& M A AR - (367)
(5,111) (4,760)
FELHEE 81,329 =
HERZ (BBR) ki (21,657) 4,760
54,561 =
LTI HRZfF:
BERE 54,561 =
Re (K1) - _
54,561 =

Note: For the year ended 31st March, 2002, the Group

disposed of its construction operations at a consideration

of HK$1.

Krax: BE_TE_F=-A=+—HL#F
B AKENUREESITHER
REERT o
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27. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 27. HEMBLR (&)

2003 2002
—2E=F —ETC-E
HK$'000 HK$000
TR ERETT

Analysis of net outflow of cash and HEMNBARMESZ

cash equivalents in respect of the RehERREIER

disposal of subsidiaries: M FEZ DN

Bank balances and cash OB FERE (110) (4,971)
Bank overdrafts RITEX - 2,594

(110) (2,377)
The subsidiaries disposed of during the year contributed FAREZMBRARMEASEE 2 &%
HK$7,171,000 to the Group's net operating outflows. WE R FEAKT,171,0007T °
For the year ended 31st March, 2002, the subsidiaries HEZZTZE-_F=-HA=+—HBLF
disposed of contributed HK$1,699,000 to the Group's B FHEEZHMBRRMERER K
net operating outflows and repaid HK$1,397,000 in IR e MR B 1,699,0007T + A
respect of financing activities. TR B EEEE B 1,397,0007T °
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28.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

NET ASSETS ACQUIRED
Investments in securities
Property, plant and equipment
Pledge deposits placed with
a finance company
Purchased programme rights
Inventories
Debtors, prepayments and deposits
Prepaid airtime
Investments in securities
Bank balances and cash
Creditors, deposits received and
accrued charges
Obligations under finance leases
Bank loans
Bank overdrafts
Shareholders’ loans
Taxation payable
Minority interests

Goodwill arising on acquisition

SATISFIED BY:

Cash consideration
Issue of ordinary shares
Other reserve

Other creditors

Analysis of net outflow of cash and
cash equivalents in respect of
acquisitions of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration
Bank balances and cash acquired
Bank overdrafts

28. WEMELT

2003
—EBT=F
HK$'000
BETT
kB EETE
BHEE -
Y - e RERE 117,725
FAFBAFZ

BHEBFR 5,000
BB A Z 80 B i 8,968
EE 15,365
JEWEBR R - EARERES 87,810
TEAT E 15 5 BR 24,840
BHEEE 5,389
ﬁﬂ EF LB S 48,416
JEMEER BElike &

FEET & A (80,966)
BB RE (18,641)
RITER (8,793)
RITEX -
% 3R B % (20,057)
FE & B E (4,246)
DB R (36,463)

144,347
WREFTE &£ 2 & 126,944

271,291
UTHHFERXNZM:
RERE 51,536
BITEBR 169,755
HAib 40,000
H fth &~ 5K IE 10,000

271,291
WEEHI B AR FTEELZ

RekERIELEHR

MEFEZDN
RERE 51,536
P g 2 RITETFRES (48,416)
RITBEX -

3,120

2002
b 2 =t
HK$"000
BETT

360

(57)
61,995

61,938

1,938
60,000

61,938

1,938

1,939
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28.

29.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The subsidiaries acquired during the year had turnover
and loss before taxation of HK$87,491,000 (2002:

HK$4,757,000)

and HK$20,077,000 (2002:

HK$5,416,000), respectively, for the period between the
date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.

MAIJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@

(b

During the year, pursuant to an agreement entered
into among the Company, Macau Media Holdings
("Macau Media") and Century Capital Group
Limited, the controlling shareholder of Macau
Media, the Company agreed to dispose to Macau
Media of its 51% equity interest in the share
capital of TV Viagens (Macau) S.A.R.L. ("TV
Viagens"), together with the debts owing by TV
Viagens to the Company in an amount of
HK$19,450,000, for a
US$11,487,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$89,600,000). The consideration was satisfied
by the issue and allotment of 4,302,188 new
ordinary shares of Macau Media at US$2.67
(equivalent to approximately HK$20.83) per share.

consideration of

During the year, pursuant to an agreement entered
into between the Company and ASTV, a company
incorporated in the State of Nevada of the United
States of America with its shares traded on a stock
exchange system in the United States of America,
the Company subscribes for 300,000,000 new
shares of US$0.001 each in ASTV, at a purchase
price of US$0.062 (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.484) per share. The consideration was
satisfied by way of transferring the entire issued
share capital of Capital Channel Limited and Sun
Television Cybernetworks Trading Limited, the
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

28.

29.

KRBT (&)

FAKBZHBRARARNKBERERAE

BHIRz 2 XBRGEHAEED B &
B

7 #87,491,0007T ( =
#4,757,0007T) &
— T 4

—= = —

—FE 4
X 7 #20,077,0007C
B 5 416,0007T) °

FRFBRERH

(@

(b)

FR - BEBEARRQF - Macau
Media Holdings ( [ Macau
Medial) & Macau Mediaz 35 i%
% ® Century Capital Group
LimitedzT 32 2 5% © R A
& M Macau Media & ,\E"/i
FiREHEEERAR LT (R
’iﬂﬁj)%Z!SEPZSWOH%’ﬂ%E
W EEDRPIEREREAA
ZEBREBEE 19,450,000
7T KRB/ 11,487,000% 7T
(#9418 % » % # 89,600,000
L) c RENFEBETREE
Macau MediaZ 4,302, 1880% 51
LTEREA - BRIEER2.67
Et (AWMBEFERE%20.83
TT) °

FA - BIEAR T EASTVE] 32
ZWm&E A RD A RE
300,000,000/% ASTV#F f% H (&
0.001EXTZ Mty - ERE
BER0.062E T (WHENE
¥0.48470) - RETBEBEE
KR\l 2z & &M B A R Capital
Limited & Sun
Cybernetworks
Trading LimitedZ 2 #0 2 217k
RXEAL -

Channel
Television
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29. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

© During the year, the Company acquired the entire
issued share capital of JEG at a total consideration
of HK$90,000,000 which was satisfied by the
issue and allotment of 458,715,596 ordinary
shares of the Company at HK$0.1308 per share
and, as to the balance, in cash. Up to the balance
sheet date, 355,504,587 ordinary shares of the
Company were issued at HK$0.108 per share.

(d)  During the year, the Company acquired the entire
issued share capital of PTD at a total consideration
of HK$45,000,000 which was satisfied by the
issue and allotment of 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at HK$0.15 per share and,
as to the balance, in cash. The shares were issued

at HK$0.108 per share.

(e) During the year, the Company acquired 74.99%
of the total issued share capital of Leadership
Publishing at a total consideration
HK$126,453,000 which was satisfied by the issue
and allotment of 2,107,551,078 ordinary shares
of the Company at HK$0.06 per share.

® During the vyear, convertible bonds
US$5,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$45,240,000) was converted into 560,630,000

ordinary shares of the Company.

(® For the year ended 31st March, 2002, the
Company acquired the entire issued share capital
of Capital Channel Limited at a consideration of
HK$60,000,000 which was satisfied by the issue
and allotment of 500,000,000 ordinary shares of

the Company at HK$0.12 per share.

29.

FTEFRETH (&)

©

(d)

(e)

®

@

FRN - XARIKWHBIEGZ 256
BEITRAEA  RELERBE
90,000,0007T * JhBE@EIT R
fid 3 458,715,596 N A 7] &
BRI BRIEEREBK
0.13087C * MAEAINR &X
f-BEHER  ARAElZ
355,504,587 EBRE LT
BE S #0108 T 31T ©

FAN - NARWEPTDZ 2
BEETRAE  RELERBE
45,000,0007T * JyiE@EIT R
fic 2 100,000,0000% AX 2 & &
BRI BREERB
0.157C * MEABAIUNIR & X
o BRI ERA0.1087T

AT -

FA - ARARIRBEARERES
B BT R AN H R 74.99000
= REBSE A BK
126,453,0007T * JyiE @ E1T
K ECE£2,107,551,078M AR A )
LB - BRIEERBE
0.067T °

F R - AN£%5,800000% T
(M9 SN A% 45,240,0007T)
ZABMBKREFE LBRAE
560,630,000 AR &) 2 L@
A% o

HE-_ZTZZT_F#=A=+—8H
IEFE - AR A WKHECapital
Channel LimitedZ 22 2 %17
f& 4 - K& &% ¥ 60,000,000
T B BB T REE
500,000,000% 78 & 7] 3 38 A%
Xt BREEBERER0I2

I °



Notes to the

Bt % 8 &5 M

BE-BRT=F=-A=+-HLEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

29.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Q)

For the year ended 31st March, 2002, convertible
bonds of US$8,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$62,400,000) were converted
into 644,289,700 ordinary shares of the Company.

For the year ended 31st March, 2002, pursuant
to two agreements entered into between the
Company and ASTV, the Company sub-licensed
the film rights to ASTV at a consideration of
US$3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,400,000) and agreed to provide ASTV with
non-exclusive use of the production facilities and
production equipment of the Group for a period
of 3 years for a consideration of US$1,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,800,000). The
consideration was satisfied by convertible notes
issued by the ASTV.

Financial Statements

29.

FTEFRETH (&)

(h

BHE_TEEZ_F#=A=+—H
IFFE - "€ 8,000,000 7T
(49 E R % 62,400,0007T)
ZABMBRESFE LBRA
644,289,700k AN Al 2 & @
A% o

HE-_TZ-_F#=-A=+—H
IEFE - BIEAR QA EASTVAE]
N2 WD 1R A A EASTV
DHEXERE  KREAR
3,000,000 7T (K H S R B
23,400,00070) © ¥ [A & [A
ASTVIREIEBRE R AKE 2
BERBRERIER - REA=
4 KR {E/41,000,0003 5t (4
% R A% 7,800,0000T) ° £
87538 BASTVES 17 7] IR Z 4%
XA o
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Statements

THE COMPANY
EAT

2003 2002
—BE=E —¥T-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
23,000 23,000
15,081 19,219
= 3,189
= 8,500
38,081 53,908
ZE=F=A=+—8 K
RIESR Ll EEHEP B

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES BRAR
THE GROUP
AKRE
2003 2002
—EE=F —FTT-HF
HK$000 HK$000
EETT BT
Guarantees given to banks NS N
in respect of banking FrER1TE M
facilities granted to ifn 1) #R 17 1 1
subsidiaries (Note) ZHER (/3/7‘535) = =
Guarantees given to HMBARET 2
outsiders in respect of EW%T)?% % 1M [\
service agreement signed SN A BEE
by subsidiaries 2 BER = -
Guarantees given to outsiders 3t fff /& 2 &
in respect of rental FET 2 MK
agreement signed iff [/ Sh 522X F)
by subsidiaries fEH 2 R = =
Guarantees given to banks ME=EE
in respect of banking 1T E R
facilities granted Al R 17 ¥ H
to third parties ZER - 8,500
- 8,500
Note: The extent of such facilities utilised by the subsidiaries Kzt - BEZ
at 31st March, 2003 amounted to HK$5,265,000 (2002: B A

HK$12,434,000).

5,265,000 (Z T = F

B

12,434,0007T) °
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31. COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect of
investments contracted for but not
provided in the financial statements

Statements

31.

MBREABITLNE
AEBEREZKRE
HEEARRX

The Company had no significant commitments at the

balance sheet date.

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments
under operating leases recognised
as income for the year

32.

ERAFEZRERE
BRELLHEAOT
ZREMEE

& i
THE GROUP
e
2003 2002
—®g=% -BT-%
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT LRSS
46,935 -

RARIRAEE R I EERARE -

el

EEENER
EREHEREEA
THE GROUP
e
2003 2002
—®g=% -BT-%
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BT
= 233
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B

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments which fall due as

follows:

Office premises

BAEME

2003
—B%=%
HK$'000
BT

—FR

F_EENF
AREEEME) 888
AFENE -

Within one year 4,153
In the second to
fifth year inclusive (

Over five years

5,041

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises, internet leases
lines and equipment. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of 3 years and rentals are fixed throughout the
lease period.

The Company had no significant operating lease
commitments at the balance sheet date.

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(A) Share option scheme adopted on 10th

November, 1992 (“Old Option Scheme”)

The major terms of the Old Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

0) The purpose was to provide incentives to
the participants.
(i) The participants included any employee or

director of the Group.

2002

It L =t
HK$'000
BRTR

7,920

441

8,361

32. @EEBEHWEIE (B
REER  KEEZER T HE E

X2 ARRREEESAZEOT

Internet leased lines Equipment
Eh@as R

2003 2002 2003 2002
ZB%=F -%%-F -¥¥=F -TT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHfn E¥TT #EETRT BT
76 = = 4,680
= = = 18,720
= = = 19,516
76 = = 42,916

REBONREAEERETHAE

W EEBEEKRER

wmAXNZ

He  HOKEREEZFHIER
=F - HOBPAXNEEHEE °

REER  AARYEERELHED

FEHE o

33.
(A)

Rl B 4 5t Y
R—AAZ&E+-—-A+BES

ZEE R BT & ([ IR A8 B 45t
EHD)

R RE B R AT 8 2 = 2GR BEDY
mr

0) B E W 2 E R R
B -

(i) 2HEEBEAKEEM
BEHEZE -
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(A) Share option scheme adopted on 10th
November, 1992 (“Old Option Scheme”)

(Continued)

(iii)  The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options might be granted under
the Old Option Scheme must not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the

Company from time to time.

(iv)  The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options might be granted to a
participant, when aggregated with shares
issued and issuable under any option
granted to the same participant under the
Old Option Scheme, must not exceed 25%
of the maximum shares issuable under the
Old Option Scheme from time to time.

) The exercisable period of an option granted
must not exceed a period of 10 years
commencing on the date of grant.

(vi)  The acceptance of an option, if accepted,
must be made within 28 days from the
date of grant with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1.00 per grant from the

grantee to the Company.

Financial Statements

33.

MMiREaE (&)
R—AAZ&E+-—-A+BES
Z B Rt Et & ([ R RS IR st
Bl &)

(A)

(iii)

(V)

)

(vi)

R 35 R A he 5t 8l AT 3%
H 2 B R A A S B B4
BEZZITEHBAR
AR ZE#HITIRAZ
10% °

Am—R2EERDZ
BRERY RIRMDER
(G [ R 1R R B8 AR &1
gmRA—2EERLZ
R RERR RE P8 1T ] AT
BT 2RMD) TEBB
R RS AR 5T 8l 7] 2%
T2t &% 25% °

P15 ) B P 2 R AT {2
HETG@EREL A S
AR+ EF -

BIREANE L B Bt
= ABAER (K
BEm)  mARAR
BRI B AR A AR
A B AN AT R B A
¥ 1.007T ©
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(R)

(B)

Share option scheme adopted on 10th
November, 1992 (“Old Option Scheme”)
(Continued)

(vii)  The exercise price of an option must be
the higher of:

. not less than 80% of the average
closing price of the share for the 5
trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

. the nominal value of the share.

(viii)  On 9th November, 2002, the Old Option
Scheme was resolved by the shareholders
of the Company to have been cancelled
thereon. However, the options granted
under the Old Option Scheme are still
exercisable in accordance with the terms
of the Old Option Scheme.

Share option scheme adopted on 10th
November, 2002 (“New Option Scheme”)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
special general meeting of the Company held on
29th October, 2002, the Company adopted the
New Option Scheme to replace the Old Option
Scheme. All the options granted under the Old
Option Scheme shall remain valid and unchanged
and shall be treated in accordance with the terms
under the Old Option Scheme. The major terms
of the New Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

0) The purpose was to provide incentives to:
. award and retain the participants

who have made contributions to
the Group; and
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the Group for the benefit of the
development of the Group.

The participants included any employee,
director, shareholder, supplier, consultant,
adviser or customer of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options might be granted under
the New Option Scheme must not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of approval of the
New Option Scheme and such limit might
be refreshed by shareholders in general
meeting. The maximum number of shares
was 994,355,571 shares, representing
10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the passing of
the ordinary resolution. However, the total
maximum number of shares which might
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme must not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time.

The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options might be granted to a
participant, when aggregated with shares
issued and issuable (including exercised
and outstanding options and the options
cancelled) under any option granted to the
same participant under the New Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme
within any 12 month period, must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue from
time to time.
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share option scheme adopted on 10th
November, 2002 (“New Option Scheme”)
(Continued)

(B)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

()

There was no requirement for a grantee
to hold the option for a certain period
before exercising the option save as
determined by the board of directors and
provided in the offer of grant of option.

The exercise period should be any period
fixed by the board of directors upon the
grant of the option but in any event the
option period should not go beyond 10
years from the date of offer for a grant.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted,
must be made within 28 days from the
date of grant with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1.00 per grant from the
grantee to the Company.

The exercise price of an option must not
be lower than the highest of:

. the closing price of the shares on
the date of grant which must be a
trading day;

. the average closing price of the

shares for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

. the nominal value of the share.
The life of the New Option Scheme is

effective for 10 years from the date of
adoption until 9th November, 2012.

No options pursuant to the New Option Scheme
were granted during the year.

33.

MMiREaE (&)
R-ZBEZ-F+-—A+BESN
2 Bl B #E 5T & (1 3 A8 Bz 4 5t
gl &)

(B)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

()

REZZETANES
2 H B AR RE I 28 TE A
A 4 38 TE AR ARTTE
REIRE R B 15 A BB IR
=T e

FEHAREEENE
P R B T )
B - MEREARE BT
EBBRIIEL AR
ez -

BREANE L B HE
AT AR AES (H
W) - AR AR
RSN Junlic NI AR
DA AS AR B 518
B 1.007T °

BREZITEENEK
RUT=&FRZ2&®
£ g

. B in AR B AR
(ARRHR)Z
W E :

. D QANNES S daw
HEBATEER S
BzFHKm
B &k

. fefp 2 E1E °

FrEERER 8 2 B M
AW A BB F
BEEZZ——-F+—A
AR -

F 1R 30 AR I8 T B R AT B3R
B A o



118

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 8 &5 M

BE-BRT=F=-A=+-HLEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 33. MR#Ex® (&)
The following table disclose details of the Company's TEREBARAEZERAEEREER
share options held by the directors of the Company and REARABRERZEERERFNA
the employees of the Group and movements in such ZEBFBFOT
holdings during the year:
Number of options
HEHE
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
at 142001 Granted ~ Brerdsed  Cancelled ~ at 313002 Granted Brerdised ~ Cancelled ~ at 31,3003
Dateof borise  R-§5-% during during duing K354 during during dwing  RZF9=%
optons granted  Bxercisable period e BA-B theyear the year theyear  ZRZt-A the year the year theyear  ZRZt-8
bERERS Efit L H (3 I i E Ehfif E& LET & ERfk !n[ L
(noei)
(Hik)
Direcors E3
1742000 2742000 - 2642010 0176 38000000 = - = 38,000,000 = = = 38,000,000
592000 592000 - 49.2010 024130000000 = = = 30,000,000 = = = 30,000,000
3112001 3112001 - 30.1.2011 015 161,000,000 = - - 161000000 - = - 161,000,000
1462001 1462001 - 136011 0129 - 1000000 = = 1,000,000 = = = 1,000,000
412002 41.2002-3.1.2012 0109 - 70000000 - = 70,000,000 - = = 10,000,000
11002 712002 -6.1.2012 0114 - 15000000 = = 25,000,000 - (10000 UUO) = 15,000,000
(o 4) i)
882002 882002782012 001
(o 1)1 - - - - - oM (Booon) - 100
1692002 1692002 - 1592012 007
(te 2)(f12) = = = = = 75,000,000 = - 75000000
29000000 96,000,000 - - 35000000 166000000 (90000,000) - 401000000
Employees &8
204199 2041995 - 1942005 020 4500000 = = (4500000) = = = = =
13101997 13.10.1997 - 12.102007 054 200000 = - = 200000 - = (200000) =
2742000 2742000 - 2642010 0.7 108580000 = - (45p80000 62700000 = = (1,800000) 60900000
1362000 1362000 - 126.2010 0231 3,000,000 = - = 3000000 - = = 3,000,000
1772000 1772000 - 1672010 020 20100000 = - (11,100,000) 9,000,000 = = (8,000,000) 1,000,000
2172000 2172000 - 072010 041 23500000 = - (11,000000) 12200000 - = (6.00000) 6,000,000
2582000 2562000 - 2482010 024 3,000,000 = = = 3000000 = = (3,000,000) =
592000 592000 - 49.2010 0241 4800000 - - = 4800000 - = - 4800000
14112000 1411:2000 - 13.11.2010 0,186 7500000 = = (3300000) 4200000 = = (1,800,000) 2400000
8122000 812000 - 712.2010 0183 6,600,000 - - = 6,600,000 - = (600,000) 6,000,000
70122000 27122000 - 26.12.200 0151 3,000,000 = = = 3,000,000 = = = 3,000,000
16.1.2001 16.1.2001 - 15.1.2011 0152 1,000,000 = (1000,000) = = = = = =
3112001 3112001 - 30.1.201 01 90370000 = - (570000 64620000 = = (6040000) 5880000
222001 222001 - 122011 0151 1500000 - - = 1500000 - = (1,500,000) =
632001 632001 - 532011 0176 2720000 = = (2420000 300000 = = (200000) 100,000
B4A2001 1342001 - 24201 0097 - 17000000 - = 17000000 - = - 17000000
1342001 1542001 - 2242011 0115 - B00000 (8,700,000) = = = = = =
1462001 1462001 - 136011 018 - 1000000 - = 1,000,000 - = - 1,000,000
412002 41.2002-3.1.2012 0109 - 71940000 = (1000000) 76,940,000 = (3500000) (244800000 4890000
1532002 132002 - U301 0152 - 64000000 - = 64,000,000 - = - 64,000,000
1532002 132002 - U301 0176 - 1450000 = = 1450000 = = = 1430000
882002 882002 - 782012 0072 (note ) - - - = = 31,000,000 = - 31,000,000
16.9.2002 1692002 - 1592012 0071 (note 2) = = = = = 34,000,000 = = 34,000,000
260070000 170,090,000 (5700000 (104950000) 335510000 65,000,000 (35000000 (53820000) 343,190,000
509070000 266,090,000 (9700000 (104950000) 660510000 251000000 (93500000)  (53820000) 744190000
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

M

©)

3

Q)

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date of grant was HK$0.061.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date of grant was HK$0.070.

The weighted average closing price of the Company's
shares immediately before the dates on which the

options were exercised was HK$0.078.

The options exercised during the year represented the
rights to acquire shares of a director who resigned on
12th April, 2002 but remained as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group. The options were fully exercised

subsequently.

Total consideration received during the year from

employees for taking up the options granted is amounted
to HK$35.

No charge is recognised in the income statement in

respect of the value of options granted during the year.
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34.

35.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme") under the rules and regulations of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Authority for all qualifying
employees of its Hong Kong Subsidiaries. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme,
which contributions is matched by employees.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of retirement benefits schemes operated by
the PRC government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions to the state retirement
schemes in the PRC based on 18% to 22% of the
monthly salaries of their current employees to fund the
benefits. The employees are entitled to retirement pension
calculated with reference to their basic salaries on
retirement and their length of services in accordance
with the relevant government regulations. The PRC
government is responsible for the pension liability to these
retired staff.

The total cost charged to income statement of
HK$2,211,000 (2002: HK$1,379,000) represents
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group in
respect of the current accounting period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31st March, 2003, leasehold land and buildings with
an aggregate net book value of approximately HK$1.8
million (2002: HK$1.9 million), plant and machinery, and
furniture and equipment with an aggregate net book value
of approximately HK$17.4 million (2002: HK$21.7 million)
and trade debtors of approximately HK$0.7 million (2002:
Nil) were pledged to banks to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.
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35.

36.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS (Continued)
At 31st March, 2003, an amount of HK$5.0 million (2002:
Nil) has been placed with a finance company as security

for the repayment of the remaining instalments of finance

leases entered into by a subsidiary of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Apart from amounts due to minority shareholders of a

subsidiary and shareholders’ loans as disclosed in notes

21 and 23 to the financial statements, respectively, the

Group had the following related party transactions during

the year:

(a)

(b)

©

The Group received management fees income of
HK$103,000 (2002: HK$541,000) from Sun
Stone Media Group Limited in which Ms. Yang
Lan and Dr. Wu Zheng, Bruno, directors of the
Company, had beneficial interests.

The Group purchased from Sun Stone Media
Group Limited and sold to its subsidiary certain
property, plant and equipment of HK$136,000
(2002: Nil) and HK$526,000 (2002: Nil)
respectively, in which Ms. Yang Lan and Dr. Wu
Zheng, Bruno, directors of the Company, had
beneficial interests. The property, plant and
equipment were transferred at their net book

values.

The Group received licensing income of
HK$8,090,000 (2002: Nil) from £l &k % 7 8=
B R 2 A, in which Mr. Lien Tai Seung, a director
of a subsidiary of the Company, has a beneficial

interest.
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36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

©)

®

®

Q)

0}

The Group paid satellite fee of HK$1,445,000
(2002: Nil) to NERBIERMHBER AT (" Mg
2", in which Mr. Lien Tai Seung is a director of
a subsidiary of the Company and is also a director
of NEEAR

The Group purchased programme rights of
HK$1,954,000 (2002: Nil) from 2 R E 18 & 1%
BEBMASHE(RRERE"), where RRE

R A is a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

The Group purchased programme rights of
HK$438,000 (2002: Nil) and property, plant and
equipment of HK$548,000 (2002: Nil) from X
MmEFEEEAMRAA], in which Mr. Wu Chien
Chiang, a director of the Company, has a beneficial
interest.

The Group received sponsorship income for a
promotion program of HK$780,000 from SINA
Corporation, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

For the year ended 31st March, 2002, the Group
purchased property, plant and equipment of
HK$923,000 from STR Broadcom International
Limited, in which Dr. Wu Zheng, Bruno is a director.
The property, plant and equipment were
transferred at their net book values.

For the year ended 31st March, 2002, the Group
borrowed a shareholder’s loan of HK$3 1,200,000
from SINA Corporation, a substantial shareholder
of the Company.

The above transactions were determined in accordance
with terms agreed between both parties on normal course
of business.
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37.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a

On 15th April, 2003, an agreement was made for
a placing and subscription of 50,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in Leadership
Publishing, a subsidiary of the Company with its
shares listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, at a
price of HK$0.40 per share, which represented a
discount of approximately 31% to the closing price
per share of HK$0.58 as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 15th April, 2003 and a discount of
approximately 25% over the average closing price
of the shares for the last ten trading days of
HK$0.5365 per share.
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37.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued)

(®)

©

Pursuant to a conditional agreement dated 23rd
May, 2003 entered into between the Company
and Strategic Media International Limited
(“Strategic Media"), the Company disposed of its
70% interests in the issued share capital of Sun
Satellite and Sun Enterprise, the ex-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and engaged in
production of aggregate of 350 hours television
programmes of feature topics including but not
limited to documentary, feature interviews and
feature reports for Strategic Media within 36
months from 23rd May, 2003 at a total
consideration of RMB80 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$74.7 million). The consideration
will be satisfied by cash of RMB65 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$60.7 million) and
as to the balance of RMB15 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$14 million) by way of
Strategic Media granting the non-exclusive rights
to broadcast through broadband in Europe and
United States of America of certain programmes
of 300 hours in aggregate which include Chinese
TV Series, movies and TV programmes owned by
Strategic Media to the Company.

Pursuant to an agreement dated 6th June, 2003
entered into among the Company, & 5 & and
& M5, the Company disposed of its entire
interests in the issued share capital of Beijing
Jingwen Records Company &t R R X B BR A
A], the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, at
a consideration of RMB35 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$32.7 million). The consideration
will be satisfied by cash of RMB20 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$18.7 million) and
as to the balance of RMB15 million (equivalent
to HK$14 million) by way of assets or cash
equivalent subject to the discretion of the
Company.
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